
AFFlDAYlT IN SUPPORT OF CRIMINAL COM.PLA INT 

1, Karen Rinehart, being duly sworn on oath, depose and state that I have been employed 

as a Special Agent with the Federal Bureau of llwestigation since April 11, 2021, and I am 

currently assigned to the West Tennessee Violent Crimes Task Force. 

AGENT BACKGROUND 

I. Affiant has been a sworn Special Agent with the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation and have been since April l l, 202 1. I am currently assigned to the Federal Bureau 

of Investigation's West Tennessee Violent Crime Task force and have been since September 2021 . 

l am statutorily charged with investigating violations of federal laws, to include bank robbery, 

interference with commerce by threats of violence (Hobbs Act robberies), the Fugitive Felon Act, 

kidnapping, and other violent crime matters . 

2. Prior to work.ing for the Federal Bureau of Investigation, I worked for 

Immigration and Customs Enforcement as an Enforcement and Removal Operations officer. Prior 

to working for Immigration and Customs Enforcement, l was a detective with the Trumann Police 

Department. During my time, 1 participated in multiple violent crime investigations. During these 

investigations, l have conducted and/or participated in victim and suspect interviews and drafting 

and execution of search wanants. 

3. I am an investigative or law enforcement officer of the United States within 

the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 2510(7) and am empowered by law to conduct investigations and make 

arrests for offenses enumerated in 18 U.S.C. § 25 16. The facts in this affidavit come from my 

personal observations, my training and experience, and information obtained from other agents, 

law enforcement officials and witnesses. This affidavit is intended to show merely that there is 

sufficient probable cause for the requested warrant and does not set forth all of my knowledge 
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about this matter. Based on the facts set forth in thi s affidavit, there is probable cause to believe 

that Abed-Al Majid Awwad (AWWAD) committed violations of 18 U.S.C. § 875(c) and 18 

U.S.C. § 2261A. 

STATEMENT OF PROBABLE CAUSE 

4 . The United States, including The Federal Bureau of Investigation , is 

conducting a criminal investigation of A WWAD regarding possible violations of 18 U.S.C. Code 

~ 875 (c) and 18 U.S.C. § 2261A. 

5. On October 3, 2024, FBI Phoenix provided infonnation regarding possible 

threats to FBI Nashville, Memphis RA. 

6. FBI Phoenix advised the following : Between October 5, 2022 , to present, 

A WW AD allegedly harassed and threatened Deena Alsadi (Deena) and Hana Alsadi (Hana) 

utilizing various social media platforms. A WW AD resides in Germantown, Tennessee. Deena 

and Hana reside in Chandler, Arizona. The Chandler Police Department took multiple police 

reports documenting AWWAD's harassment of Deena and Hana . The messages included killi..ng 

Deena and Hana and sexually assaulting them . The Chandler Police Department had 

approximately six reports related to the allegations. 

7. On October 3, 2024, Deena and Hana's attorney, Alfredo Richard, 

provided FBI Nashville, Memphis RA with approximately one hundred and sixty-six sereenshots 

of harassing and threatening messages and comments. The messages were from multip le 

accounts that had been deactivated shortly after the messages were sent. 

8. On October 4, 2024, Special Agent Rinehart conducted a phone interview 

with Deena and Hana in the presence of their attorney . Hana stated in 2022 an Instagram profile 

requested to follow her profile. Hana initially communicated with the profile and the user of the 
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profi le advised hi s name was Abed-Al Awwad. The lnstagram account li sted the profile as being 

in Tennessee : 

< November 9, 2022 
9 :59 AM Ed it 0 

ova_ sea_drip wan ts t o 
fo llow you r◄iiD Delete 

0 
Posts 

48 34 
Followers Following 

mj 
memphis f C 

This account is private 

@ Fol low th is account t o see thei r photos 
and videos . 

Suggested for you 

Sadie 
sad iebby12 

X 

-· • Follow. _- . • 

Basma Askar 
srn ilehabibti 

X 

See a ll 

Jouman 
journar 

c~ 111.·~ • ~11~-11-~. I •~~ • I 

c!J Q CD Uill 
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9. The user of the profi le also sent Hana a photograph of himself: 

,111 -;- 78 

< Chandler - Ke mpton Crossing Edit O 
November 17, 2022 8:48 PM I(:;) 

@ LIVE v 

1 .· '. • ~11 ~ !!""'!I! •, -.. ·· 1 · .w ~- !.. .:,_ -
0

4' 0 , -0"'. - • --.--~ 

c!J Q CD 1illJ 
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l 0. ln 2023, a Snapchat profi le with the usemame "majed awwad" requested 

to fo llow Hana's profile . 

. . 
o. be y.ou_r fri end! 

.wahts to pe your friend! . •.-

majecf ·awwad 
war,ts to be your fri end! 

t 
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11 . Multiple accounts were created using Hana's photograph and name 

without Hana 's permission and contained obscene sexual statements: 

< Hana Alsadi Herpes posit ive [). e;> 

16 
Fuflow1,1y 

@hanaherpes 

0 
fu ,lowers 

,,,,, Message 

0 
Like5 

0 

Fly me out I link in hotel and gym keep lowkey 
I'm hungry dm for price fr wallah 

No videos yet 

Viceos posted by hanaherpes wfll appear here 

< hanah erpes 

hanaiierpes wants to 
iollow you 

Infected wit std 

0 
posts 

1.11118 

0 
followers 

10 
following 

Slept wit me in a hotel she do a lot for some money 

Follow Message 

No posts yet 
When hanaherpes posts. you'll see their photos 
and videos horc . 

Suggested for you 

Sara O 
engli sholendsd 

X 

Rawan 
ra•113r._97 

See all 

X 

._,!..,.,:, 
hanya . __ .. 

" Q (±) 

Page 6 of 14 

Case 2:24-cr-20194-TLP     Document 3-1     Filed 10/17/24     Page 6 of 14      PageID 9



•• lTE .-+ . 

< hope_you_get_raped 

hope_you_get_raped wants 
10 follow you @M Delete 

0 6 
Posts Follower s Following 

Bisrnillah plz Allah if you exist let Hana the dick 
addict get raped . Ameen 

This account is private 
Follow this account to see their photos 
and videos 

Suggested for you 

Jenna and Hana 
hanaan:iien•,J 

)( 

-
Q 

Creations .by.lila 
creattons.by.lil.a 

(±) 

)( 

See all 

Diana I 
c,ana.: .. 

12. Hana deleted all her social media accounts . 
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13. Deena began receiv ing harassing messages and multipl e accounts were 

created using her name, but contained inappropriate profile photographs: 

< 

0 
Following 

Deena Alsadi 

@deenaalsadiii 

0 
Followers 

- Message 

, 1 LTE iii--:), 

0 
Likes 

0 

S lu t. OfAz local link ups only dm for more info 

No videos yet 

Videos posted by deenaalsadiii will appear here 

< deena .alsadii 

0 
posts 

0 
followers 

,, LTE lif:J· 

0 
following 

Deena alsad i 
loca l link ups only dm for more info shh keep lowkey 

Message 

No posts yet 
When deena.aisadi1 posts, you'll see their photos 
and videos here. 

Suggested for you See all 

X X 

-t -~ 
~~ 

Falasteen ,}" ..s,,1 Hannan I 
falastccnia91 haw_ari98 hanna 1 

Q (±) 

14. On January 31, 2024, Noor Alsadi, Deena and Hana' s brother, contacted 

his sister-in-law, who had fami ly in Memphis , TN. The sister-in-law' s fami ly obtained contacted 

Page 8 of 14 

Case 2:24-cr-20194-TLP     Document 3-1     Filed 10/17/24     Page 8 of 14      PageID 11



infonnation for A WW AD's family . Noor contacted A WWAD's uncle on the phone. Noor asked 

A WW AD 's unc le if he could ask A WW AD to leave Noor's sisters alone. 

15. On Apri l 2, 2024, Noor asked the uncle for AWWAD's father ' s phone 

number. Noor contacted the fat her via SMS message with no response. 

16. On July 18, 2024, AWW AD purchased a 556 Anderson MFG AM- 15 

pistol serial number 1504298 1 from Bid Daddy 's Pawn, Guns, Tools and Car Audio in 

Memphis, TN. 

17. On August 13 , 2024, Deena applied for an Order of Protection with the 

Chandler Municipal Court in Chandler, AZ. On that same date, the court en tered an Injunction 

Against Harassment, ordering that "Defendant shall have no contact with Plain ti ff except 

through attorneys, legal process, and/or court hearings. " A copy of the petition and the court's 

order are attached hereto as Exhibit A. On August 27, 2024, AWWAD was served with tl1e 

injunction at AWWAD's residence at 2890 Leesburg Dr. Germantown, Tennessee 38138 . 

18. On September 6, 2024, A WW AD attempted to purchase a Heritage Arms 

22LR Heritage Rough Rider revolver serial number 1BH411268 but was denied. The denial 

reason listed was "state prohibitor or court-ordered firearm restriction." 

19. On September 15, 2024, Noor called AWW AD's father to confirm 

A WW AD was sti ll at the Germantown address, because the Alsadi fami ly was in fear for their 

safety. On the phone the father confirmed A WW AD was at the residence. Noor heard 

A WW AD 's father yelling at a male Noor believed to be A WW AD. A WW AD 's father asked the 

male why he was "doing this" and Noor heard the male say there was no way to prove it was 

him. 
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20. On September 16, 2024 , Deena and Hana' s mother, Sana Shalabi , 

contacted A WWAD 's mother and asked her to have AWW AD leave Sana's daughters alone. 

A WW AD 'smother advised A WW AD had done this before and there was nothing she could do. 

21. The Alsadi 's attorney, Alfredo Richard, reached out to the Gemrnntown 

Police Department (GPD) in Germantown, Tennessee. Mr. Richard requested police to attempt 

to speak to AWWAD. On September 25 , 2024, GPD attempted to contact AWWAD at 2890 

Leesburg Dr. Germantown, Tennessee . GPD officers spoke to A WWAD ' s mother. A WWAD' s 

mother advised GPD that she and her husband kicked A WW AD out because he had been 

causing so much trouble . 

22. On October 11 , 2024, Deena provided the FBI wi th the below messages 

that were sent from an unknown phone number to her phone: 
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,I 9 Cl-

< 
_, 1901 ) 4 81·18 16 

Yall do sihir and black magic wait 

t ill i expose ya ll 

That 's y yo birthday 7/3 and mines 

3/6 u a whore everywhere u go 

I don't even go to work idgaf about 

palestine dumb bitch what's my 

name 

I'm jus living dumb bitch 

Ur new nickname is dumb bitch 

Dumb bitch in my contacts 

waddup 

Yall made me do all that that 's y ur 
dad died he had to pay for it sorry 
he burnt to a brim 

He pulled up to my room and tried 

to say " Ana al lah • It~ dum bitch 

that's y he caught a heart attack 

cuz I answered my phone right 

Yall sending evil spirits to my 

location ~ and I defeated them 

+ 

0 

A 

< 

6:0 5 '-

♦ 1 (90 1) 481 -1 816 

~lt''-!.u\ft' 
Ye!lltP.rd,.y :- agµ""" 

U give shots fast I like the way 
work if u take it slower it look 
better on video 

Y u and hana think imma stop ~ 

~v u can 't escape me 

I can choose any woman I want 
ain't nobody obsess with ya ll 

I'm tryna see who be fucking yall 
cuz im Allahs servant gotta report 
yall cuz yall don't understand 

All ya ll was finna catch 556 to the 
face can' t no Botox fix that 

Anybody play w me they gettln 
tortured and dying I make u kil l ur 
own fam ily at gun point 

+ 

.,. C:::) 

0 

23. The operator of the unknown number advised their birthday was "3/6" and 

A WWAD 's birthday is March 6, 200 I . The last two messages stated "all yall was finna catch 

556 to the.face can 't no Botox fix that." And "Anybody play w me they getting tortured and 

dying 1 make u kill ur own family at gun puint." r believe that "556" is a reference to the 556 

Anderson MFG AM-15 pistol A WW AD purchased on Ju ly 18, 2024. 

24. Due to the viol en t nature of the threats, an exigent request was sent to 

Verizon for location infotmation related to the phone number 901-481 -18 16. Verizon responded 

that from 12:09PM central time to 5:24PM on Friday October 11 , 2024, the Global Positioning 
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System (GPS) location consistently provided a latitude and longitude of3 5.070306 -89.7941 , 

with a radius of approximately 593 meters. The 2890 Leesb urg Dr. Germantown, Tennessee was 

inside the provided radius . 

25. On October 14, 2024, an unknown number sent the below messages to 

Deena's personal phone number: 

< 
., (901) 883 -8824 

Dare u snitch again u finna be 

missing a face ~ imma be 
laughing 

And yo mom gett ing shots in her 
ears 

ldk y she don't wanna dm all it 
take is me going to az buying a 

ghost glock with a switch 100 
round drum and Gurentee y'all 
ain' t gonna see the light of day 

I don't have a address bitch 

Everybody knows I don't ta lk to 
nobody I don' t fw no gay people y 
y'all tryna play 

Used ass bitch whore imma kill u 

just to kill u 

idk y yall keep tryna play 

Y don't u wanna answer 

U answer oav oeoole texts ? 

+ 

26. On October 16, 2024, Deena advised a new unknown number sent her 

approximately 527 messages, to include the below messages: 
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(0 
- 1 (901) 738- 1051 

··seen him in person 

Tell me and wallah he gon be dead 

Or u can pray and ask allah to kill 

him or i can 

I already saw what happened 

I'm jp catch me on a jet ski 

smoking a hookah in crysta l clear 

waters 

Anyone wa nt problems im pu lling 

up with a Fu lly Automatic 

Wallah u and all your cousins 

catching shots in yall brain on go 
pro 

Stop telling for no reason im Just 

chill in 

If woman stop being whores and 

tell me what happened I can tell 

yell who the devil is 

+ 

-:- 0· 

OJ < 
., (901) 738 -10~ ! 

balloon 

And a parachute "';'" 

My name abedalmajid no one 
plays w me unless they wanna get 
headsl1otted 

My name majid 

Queen Msg 

Princess pie 

Princess pie I need 

My timbers r shivered 

Shiver my timbers 

I'm moving to cali or a beach 

Fr tho im tryna go kin the devil only 
u and hana know who it is yall 
seen him in person 

27. One of the messages stated, "My name abedalmajid no one plays w me 

unless they wanna get headshotted". A WW A D's name is Abel-a l Majid Awwad. 

28. An exigent request was sent to Verizon for Global Positioning System 

(GPS) location consistently provided a latitude and longitude of 35 .070306 -89 .794 1, with a 

radius of approximately 593 meters . The 2890 Leesburg Dr. Germantown, Tennessee was inside 

the provided radius . 
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29. The location data provided by Verizon in Paragraph 24 and Paragraph 28 

indicates that he has returned to the 2890 Leesburg Drive address. 

CONCLUSION 

Based on my investigation, I believe that there is probable cause to believe that ABED-Al 

MAJID A WWAD committed the criminal violations as set forth in this criminal complaint and 

respectfully request that the Court issue an arrest warrant. 

K Rinehar1 
Special Agent 
Federal Bureau of Investigation 

Pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 41, the undersigned judicial officer has on 

this date considered information communicated by telephone, in reviewing and deciding 

whether to issue a search wanaut. ln doing so, this judicial officer has placed the affiant under 

oath and has confinned by speaking personally with the affiant on the telephone that the 

signatures on the application and affidavit are those of the affiant , the documents received by the 

judicial officer are a correct and complete copy of the documents submitted by the affiant, and 

the information contained in the application and affidavit are true and correct to the best of the 

affiant ' s knowledge. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on the 

s/ Tu M. Pham 
HON . TUM. PHAM 
CHTEF UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE 
WESTERN DISTRICT OF TENNESSEE 
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